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The Greenbank Mill stands on its original foundation, even
though much of the wooden superstructure was replaced after a recent
fire. The first story, in the stone foundation, contains some old
mill machinery ‘that escaped the fire. The stone wing, built in 1812,
has since been removed.

Even though the frame structure has been largely rebuilt, it is
a faithful restoration of the 1790 mill, as it appeared when Oliver
Evans' machinery was installed.

The main mill building measures 50' by 39', and stands 2%
stories high. A shed~-roofed porch at the northeast corner provides
access from the road. A small office wing, one story high with a
loft, has been added on the north of the main block. The restored
roof, like the original, is covered with wooden shingles. A simple
box cornice surrounds the structure.

Nearby, on the opposite side of Greenbank Road, stands the
‘Phlllps House, a stone structure with a datestone. marked "1783," The
house is 2% stories hlgh with a gable roof pierced by two segmentala
arched dormers. The main structure is a side-hall, double-pile housd
with a five-bay frontage. On the south end of the facade, the main
door opens into the stair hall; on the north end, another entry opens
into the dining room, which may have been added, although it is
integral with the main block. Some detailing survives in the house,
but the interior largely reflects several generations of change and
occupation. Across the east frontage of the house is a long
verandah, which apparently is amodern replacement or addition. In
the yard of the house is a bank barn with a stone foundation.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

enterprises during its long history. Depending on the market, the
mills here produced flour or woolen products, or carriage parts.

"Southern Land" on Red Clay Creek, was patented to John
Anderson(or Stalcop) in October 1677. Thomas Bird later acquired
part of the tract, and it was from his son, Empson, that Robert
Philips bought the property in 1773. Until 1790, Philips operated
the old log mill that had stood on the property for many years;
when this sturcture became inadequate, he built the present frame
structure nearby.

Greenbank won a place in the history of American manufacturing
when Oliver Evans, a native of nearby Newport, installed his
automatic mill machinery in the 1790 building. The work of this
Delaware inventor revolutionized milling in Arnerica.

An anecdote frequently told about Greenbank relates that Evans
invited several millers to study his machinery in operation. They
arrived to find the mill running unattended; Evans was making hay
in the adjoining field. The millers were impressed but taken
aback; one of them called the machinery "a set of rattle traps."

By the second decade of the nineteenth century, grain milling
shifted almost entirely to the larger mills on the banks of the
Brandywine, where seagoing ships could load directly from the mills.
The Philips family then converted the Greenbank property to take
advantage of another expanding market. Deteriorating relations
with Britain had closed off the supply of English woolen goods;
this condition offered American woolen products a protected market.

The Philips' developed a flock of Merino sheep, which was
established by February 1811, when they advertised for a shepherd.
The boom in wool created a shortage of skilled workmen; in
January 1811, the Delaware legislature had passed a law exempting
workmen in water-~powered mills fashioning "woollen yarn, woollen
cloth," and certain other products, from "militia fines and
forfeitures."
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8. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE (continued)===

During the same period, new facilities became necessary; a stone
mill building was erected next to the old mill in 1812, and named
"Madison Factory" in honor of the President.

The end of the woolen boom coincided with the signing of a peace
with Britain. British goods appeared on the American market once
again, and the Philips family began to liquidate its investments in
wool. They continued in the business until 1819, when the property
was seized by the sheriff.

By 1830, John C, Philips, son of Robert, had bought in the property
and had satisfied his father's creditors. Under John's sons, William
G. and Isaac D. Philips, Greenbank entered its third period. In 1852,
they undertook the manufacture of wheel spokes and wood bentware. The
company of William G. Philips and Brother advertised carriage parts,
wheels, and wooden forks. Following the Civil War, Wilmington became
a carriage manufacturing center, and the Philips company rode the crest
of a new tide; the company displayed a line of wood products at the
Industrial Fair of 1874 in Wilmington.

This venture ended much as the woolen business had. The sheriff
closed the factory in 1879 because of a debt that amounted to fifteen
or twenty thousand dollars. By this time, the firm was known as J.P.
Wells and Company, but John P. Wells went to Baltimore, ostensibly to
attend a funeral, and never returned. William G. Philips was left with
a ruined business to rebuild.

Philips continued to operate the gristmill at Greenbank as a
small=volume custom mill, but after his death it passed out of the
family. As a custom mill, Greenbank continued in business until a few
years ago, when it became the property of Historic Red Clay Valley, Inc.
It was awaiting restoration when vandals set fire to it, causing heavy
damage that has largely been repaired.
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